ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2015
3:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 79
"An Act relating to reenploynent of persons who retire under the
defined benefit plan of the teachers' retirenment system"™

- MOVED CSSB 79(EDC) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 89

"An Act relating to a parent's right to direct the education of
a child; and relating to questionnaires admnistered in
school s. "

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE BI LL NO. 37
"An Act relating to sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness
and prevention efforts in public schools.”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 79
SHORT TI TLE: REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

03/ 18/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 15 (S) EDC, CRA
03/ 26/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2015



03/ 26/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 26/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 31/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 31/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 02/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 02/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

04/ 07/ 15 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 07/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 89

SHORT TI TLE: PARENT RI GHTS: EDUCATI ON, SCHOOL ABSENCE

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

03/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 15 (S) EDC, STA

03/ 31/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 31/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

04/ 02/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 07/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SHEI LA PETERSON, St aff

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned Anendnent 1 to SB 79.

JOHN BOUCHER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 79.

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators and
Al aska Superintendents Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified
Amendnent 1.

in support of SB 79, but

JACK WALSH, Superi nt endent
Crai g School District

SENATE EDC COW TTEE Apri |

agai nst

7, 2015



Crai g, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

CHRI S REI TAN, Superi ntendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79, but against
Amendnent 1.

PATRI CK MAYER, Superi nt endent

W angel | Public School District

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

LI NCOLN SAI TO, Chief Operating Oficer

Nort h Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

BETHANY MARCUM St af f

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned Arendnents 1 and 2 to SB 89.

LI NCOLN SAI TO, Chief Operating Oficer

North Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified agai nst SB 89.

JON WATTS, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

MONI CA WATTS, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

ALLI SON CURRY, Staff

Pl anned Par ent hood

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

TARYN LUSKDEET, representing herself

North Pol e, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2015



DR. BARBARA HANEY, representing herself
North Pol e, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

JACK WALSH, Superi nt endent

Craig City School District

Crai g, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified agai nst Anmendnment 2 in SB 89.

ED GRAY, representing hinself

Sitka, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89, including the
two amendments.

M KE COONS, representing hinself

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89 and the two
amendnent s.

RACHELLE SI EBER, representing herself

Wasill a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89, including the
amendnent s.

PO SE BOGGS, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

SACHA PETTI TT, Teacher

Mat - Su Bor ough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:32: 55 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Gessel, Grdner, Stevens, and
Chair Dunl eavy. He noted that there were three bills before the
commttee, all of which have been previously heard.

SB 79- REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N

3:33:42 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consideration of SB 79. The bill
will allow school districts to hire retired educators. He said

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2015



this is the third hearing and a comrittee substitute (CS),
| abel ed 29-LS0444\ E was adopted on 3/31/15.

SENATOR HUGE NS noved to adopt Amendnent 1, |abeled 29-
LS0444\ E. 1:

AVENDMENT 1

Page 1, following line 13:
I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(c) A school district that reenploys a nenber
under this section who is retired under the defined
benefit retirenent plan established in AS 14.25.009 -
14.25.220 is required to make contributions under
AS 14.25.070."

Page 3, following line 2:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 5. AS 14.25.070(a) is anended to read:

(a) Each enployer shall contribute to the system
every payroll period an anount cal culated by applying
a rate of 12.56 percent to the total of all base
salaries paid by the enployer to active nenbers of the
system and to nenbers who are retired from the plan
and reenpl oyed under AS 14.20. 136, including any
adj ust ment s to contributions required by
AS 14.25.173(a)."

Renunber the following bill section accordingly.

Page 3, line 6:

Del ete "and"
Page 3, line 7, followng "Act,":

Insert "and AS 14.25.070(a), as anended by sec. 5
of this Act,"”

CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ected for discussion.

SHEI LA PETERSON, Staff, Senator M ke Dunleavy, Al aska State
Legi slature, explained that Amendnent 1 cane as a result of a
di scussion between the sponsor and the Departnent of
Adm nistration. It requires school districts, when they hire a
retired educator, to continue to pay the 12.56 rate toward the
teacher retirement system as if the educator was an active
enpl oyee. This will prevent a drain on the Teacher Retirenment
System f unds.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2015



She noted that Anmendnent 1 is found in two sections in the bill:

Page 1, following line 13:

I nsert a new subsection to read:

* Requires a school district that reenploys a retired
educator to contribute to the Teacher Retirenent
Systemat a rate of 12.56 percent of the educator’s
sal ary.

Page 3, followng line 2:

Insert a new bill section to read:

* Adds to current statutory |anguage that an enpl oyer
shall contribute to the Teacher Retirenent System an
anount of 12.56 percent of a retired and re-enpl oyed
educator’s sal ary.

e The contribution rate is the sane as applied to
active nmenbers of the system

Page 3, line 6 and Page 3, line 7:
 Conform ng | anguage

3:37:12 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY explained that the bill adds tools for school
districts to expand a pool of educators and save costs. The
di scussi on was about who pays into retirenent. There was concern
about the nunber of teachers who mght want to retire and then
get rehired under a special contract.

JOHN BOUCHER, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner
Department of Adm nistration, answered questions related to SB
79. He explained that the concern was that when there is a new
| arge pool of retired workers who are not subject to regular
contributions, the overall <contributions to the retirenent
system would go down proportionately. It would end up shifting
costs to the state. He said having the districts pay 12.56
percent into retirement is a solution.

3:39:48 PM

SENATOR STEVENS requested clarification. He gave an exanple of a
person who retires and goes back to teaching and is no |onger
drawing nore from the retirenment system He suggested that
having the district pay the 12.56 percent into the retirenent
fund is an additional burden for the district.

MR. BOUCHER clarified that educators who would have had covered
wages are being replaced by educators with uncovered wages. The

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2015



overall pool of retirenent contributions is dimnished and could
shift costs to the unfunded liability.

SENATOR STEVENS understood the situation, but saw it as unfair
to districts.

SENATOR GARDNER summari zed that there is no direct inpact to the
enpl oyee, nor departnent, nor student, but there is a cost to
the district in order to help with the underfunded liability of
the retirenent system

MR. BOUCHER agreed and added that the districts save by not
having to pay insurance benefits.

SENATOR GARDNER concl uded that it also reduces the eagerness of
the district to look for retirees that they can rehire, but it
keeps open the option of hiring a qualified, experienced retired
educat or at sone savi ngs.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY added that the savings is less than 12.56
per cent .

3:43:12 PM
SENATOR HUGAE NS spoke of the various retirenent tiers that may
retire soon.

MR. BOUCHER said when you renove long-tine teachers, there is
nore of an inpact on payroll savings.

SENATOR HUGE NS what is true today is less true every year due
to fewer Tier | and Tier Il retirees.

He asked if a retiree receives any longevity benefits from being
rehired.

MR BOUCHER sai d no.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if the retirenent benefits remain the same
for rehirees.

MR. BOUCHER sai d yes.

SENATOR HUGEA NS nmentioned retirement incentives and this new
program

CHAI R DUNLEAVY provided an exanple of a teacher who retired and
then was offered a contract by Departnent of Education and Early

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2015



Devel opnent (DEED). There have been district incentives in the
past that have been offered, but there are no incentives under
SB 79.

3:48: 13 PM
MR BOUCHER confirned that it is not a factor in this bill.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY stated that the state gets a 12.5 percent cut to
go along with this plan. It is much | ess expensive for districts
to hire a retiree.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the teacher continues to receive
retirement benefits during the tine they are on contract. She
asked if it makes for a larger inbalance in the unfunded
liability if they have retired sooner than planned, had the
contract not been an option.

MR. BOUCHER said it would if that becomes a trend. He opined
that the 12.5 percent will offset that situation. He said you
are replacing wages wth benefits, wth wages that do not
recei ve benefits.

3:51: 58 PM

SENATOR STEVENS liked the idea behind the bill. He did not see
the plan as soneone working as a full-tinme teacher retiring and
then working full time. He provided as an exanple one of his
favorite professors. He saw the plan as part-time or short-term
teaching positions. He opined that school boards |ose under the
12.56 percent scenario and the "systent wins; he did not see the
equity there.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY provided an extreme exanple. He restated the
intent to provide a tool that does work for the district to
provide economic relief. He said the bill is a result of his
experience with the nentor project where experienced teachers
gi ve back to educati on.

SENATOR GARDNER said that is a new way of |ooking at the bill
She thought it was a tool to provide teachers for hard-to-fill
positions, not a cost savings measure.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it is for both.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the wage scale would be the sane in a
rehire contract as it would be in a regular teaching contract.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the nmentor program had a set anmount of pay
that had no relationship to a district's pay scal e.

3:57: 01 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if districts are taking up 12.5 percent of
the costs, whether they are com ng out even.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY provided an exanple to show that a district would
save noney and get the benefit of a teacher's experience, and
teachers would also benefit by teaching in a place they want to
t each.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if school districts would be conmenting on
Amendnent 1 to SB 79. She gave an exanple of a teacher who
currently teaches, retires, and continues to teach in the sane
district.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the bill would not prohibit that.

SENATOR STEVENS stated if there was a sound retirenment system
Al aska would not have this problem |If the retirenent system
woul d have been wel | -managed, this bill would not be needed.

MR. BOUCHER thought it was a reasonable statenent. He said the
departnment is doing its best not to add to the wunfunded
liability.

4:00: 29 PM
SENATOR HUGGA NS recalled a .49 limtation for rehires.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY explained that «currently, an individual that
retires can cone back and work at a .49 position and collect
retirement benefits. They can work full tinme on contract w thout
benefits.

SENATOR HUGGE NS comment ed on t he advant ages proposed in SB 79.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY agr eed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY renoved his objection and Anmendnment 1 was
adopt ed.

He opened public testinony.
4.:02:16 PM

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director, Alaska Council of Schoo
Adm ni strators and Al aska Superintendents Association, testified

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2015



in support of SB 79, but not Anendnent 1. She comrented on the
staggering shortage of teachers and adm nistrators in Al aska.
She maintained that it would be better to have the bill with the
anendnent than for the bill to not pass at all.

SENATOR GARDNER asked whether the anmendnent provides any cost
savings to districts. She also asked if there is any concern
about unanticipated consequences from people retiring early,
when they otherwi se wouldn't have, to take advantage of this
opti on.

VB. SKILES PARADY said the concern for unanti ci pat ed
consequences was part of the discussion with the Departnent of
Adm nistration. It is educators' perspective that retirenment is
a very serious decision. Also, there is a one-year break
requi renent before rehiring takes pl ace.

Regardi ng cost savings, she noted that each district wll be
different and have different needs. She ternmed the retirees "at
wi |l enployees" that do not take from or add to, the retirenent

system She opined that the anmendnent would reduce cost savings
to districts.

4:08: 08 PM
SENATOR STEVENS understood that the bill is a tool that appears
to be a great way for districts to save.

JACK WALSH, Superintendent, Craig School District, testified in
support of SB 79. He believed that the bill has many positive
benefits, however, he suggested that the bill would elimnate
sone of the savings allowed for the .49 enployees. The cost
savings for teachers would be good for districts and there are
advantages to hiring retirees. He spoke of hiring educators who
have expertise to fill gaps in the district.

4:11: 54 PM

CHRIS REITAN, Superintendent, Galena City School District,
testified in support of SB 79, but not of the anendnent. He
concurred with the comments by M. Skiles Parady. He said he
would |like to see retired educators wth Al askan experience
working in schools during these challenged economc tinmes. He
said he would rather not see the anendnent, but approves the
bill as a whole.

4:14: 01 PM

PATRI CK MAYER, Superintendent, Wangell Public School District,
testified in support of SB 79. He concurred with the two

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2015



previous testifiers that they would rather have the anended

version of SB 79 than no bill at all. He saw the need for the
bill due to the shortage of teachers in Alaska, especially in
rural Alaska. He said hiring from a pool of experienced staff
will be inportant to his district. He also saw the incentive for

the retiree to be able to conti nue to work.

SENATOR STEVENS referred to the disadvantages from the .49
provision previously nentioned. He asked if Wangell has any
experience with that.

MR. MAYER said there was only one instance of that in his
district. He said he wants to encourage new teachers to cone to
Wangell. He didn't see it as being a huge deterrent, noting
it's a case by case situation

4:18: 07 PM

LINCOLN SAITO Chief Operating Oficer, North Slope Borough
School District, testified in support of SB 79. He said the bil
is less attractive with the anmendnent, but still attractive. Not
having to pay health insurance would save the district 25
percent of a person's salary. He said they want a |arger pool to
sel ect from because they are having trouble filling 9 positions
after going to 5 job fairs. He stressed the need for good
teachers for their students.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY cl osed public testinony.

He noted a fiscal note is forthcomng. He wi shed to nobve the
bill.

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that the bill has nore nerits than
negatives and will provide a pool of educators for Al aska.

4:21:59 PM

SENATOR HUGE NS noved to report CS for SB 79, as anended, from
committee wth individual recommendations and a forthcom ng
fiscal note.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that wi thout objection, CSSB 79(EDC) is
reported fromthe Senate Education Standing Comm ttee.

4:22:18 PM
At ease

SB 89- PARENT RI GHTS: EDUCATI ON; SCHOOL ABSENCE

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2015



4: 25: 34 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced t he consi derati on

substitute for SB 89, version 29-LS0735\P, noting that

adopt ed on 4/ 2/ 15.

SENATOR HUGE NS noved to adopt Anmendnent 1,
LSO735\ P. 1:

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

AMVENDMVENT 1

1, Iine 9, following "(1)":

| nsert "recogni zing the authority of and"
1, line 11, following "(2)":

| nsert "recogni zing the authority of and

1, line 12:
Del ete "performance standard,”
2, line 4:

Del ete "one nonth"
I nsert "six weeks"
Del ete "performance standard,”

2, line 7:
Del ete "performance standard,”

2, line 8 following "(4)":
| nsert "recogni zing the authority of and

2, line 9:

Del ete "performance standard,”
2, line 15:

Del ete "performance standard,”
2, line 20:

Del ete "performance standards, "
2, line 22:

Del ete "performance standard,”
2, line 25, followi ng "each":

| nsert "separate"

2, line 25:

Del ete "performance standard,”

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12-

of committee

it was
| abel ed 29-
April 7, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ected for discussion purposes.

BETHANY MARCUM Staff, Senator M ke Dunleavy, Al aska State
Legi slature, read the explanation for Amendnent 1:

Repl ace “allowing” with “recogni zing the authority of
and allowing” on lines 9 and 11 of page 1, and line 8
of page 2 to reinforce that parental rights are

i nherent.

Renove the phrase “performance standard” in 8 places
and keep it in 1 place to clarify awkward synt ax.

Repl ace “one nonth” with “six weeks” on line 4 of page
2 to give school districts a nore flexible duration of
time for collecting perm ssion from parents.

Add the word “separate” on line 25 of page 2 for
clarity.

4:28:26 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if anyone had any questi ons.

4:28: 46 PM
At ease

4:30:10 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY reconvened the neeting.

M5. MARCUM noted that the word "allowing” is the only mjor
change in the bill.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY renpved his objection and Anmendnment 1 was
adopt ed.

4:31:21 PM
SENATOR HUGE NS noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, |abeled 29-
LSO0735\ P. 2:

AVENDVENT 2
Page 1, line 1:
Del ete "and"
Page 1, line 2, follow ng "school"

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2015



| nsert . prohibiting a school district from
contracting with an abortion services provider; and
prohibiting a school district from allowing an
abortion services provider to furnish course materials
or provide instruction concerning sexuality or
sexual ly transnmtted di seases”

Page 3, followng line 1:
Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 2. AS 14.03.083 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(e) A school district and an educational services
organi zation that has a <contract wth a school
district may not contract wth an abortion services
provi der."

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

Page 2, follow ng line 16:
Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 5. AS 14.30.360 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(c) A school district may not pernmt an abortion
services provider or an enployee or volunteer of an
abortion services provider to offer, sponsor, furnish
course materials, or provide instruction relating to
human sexuality or sexually transmtted di seases.”

CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ect ed.
BETHANY MARCUM expl ai ned that Anmendnent 2:

Wul d prevent abortion service providers from
contracting with school districts and educati onal
servi ce organi zati ons.

Woul d prohibit abortion service providers from
supplying materials to school districts on human
sexual ity and sexually transmtted di seases.

Abortion services providers would not be permtted to
provide instruction on sexually transmtted di seases
and sexuality to school districts.

4:32:30 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if would nmake nore sense to tell a schoo
district what issues they are allowed to address so they don't

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2015



authorize materials that contravene those issues. She suggested
that a religious organization mght provide materials that m ght
be objectionable, in principle, wunder this anmendnent. She
enphasi zed that the issue is not who provides the materials, it
is the nmaterial bei ng provided. She concluded that the
underlying interest is in having control over what Kkind of
mat erials and information are provided.

She asked if that is correct.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY said yes, but also not having industry
representatives in the school.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the objection is to the industry or the
materi al s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the objection is to the nessage in the
school for a captive audience. He said parents believe their
kids are going to school to learn the Three Rs. He wants to
have discussions regarding certain topics at honme, not in
school. He opined that school is not an appropriate venue for
this topic or industry.

SENATOR GARDNER asked what happens if it were a condom
manufacturer or birth control pharmaceutical conpany providing
i nformati on about sexuality or sexually transmtted di seases.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it is a good question.

4:35:30 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL said they are tal king about an industry com ng
into schools to market a product to a captive audience. She
t hought the same phil osophy woul d apply to other conpanies.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the topic is not shared by all parents of
t he captive audi ence.

SENATOR GARDNER mai ntained that it is not about the marketing of
the product, which is not addressed by the |language in the

anendnent, it is about the provider. She opined, given the
strong | anguage about options for parents to w thdraw or not
have children participate in any instruction concerning

sexuality or sexually transmitted di sease, and parents' right to
review the materials beforehand, this |anguage is not needed. A
parent who has concerns can opt out.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2015



She stated that the anendnent clearly is targeted for one
particular organization. If you object to the organization,
that's one thing, but a bunch of different organizations m ght
provi de objectionable nmaterial for any nunber of reasons.
Parents already have every opportunity to know what is happening
and when it is happening and can choose to not provide active
consent .

4. 37:53 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL referred to page 1, line 2, where it discusses
contracting with a provider who provides nedical service and
pronoting the nedical services to mnors. That would require
parental consent. She concluded that nedical intervention is
bei ng di scussed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY added, in some ways, we don't know what is being
di scussed. He said that he and others feel that schools are not
an appropriate place for this industry's nmarketing. Kids need to
learn content in schools. There is not enough tinme to do
everyt hing and sone things should not be happening in schools.

4:40: 19 PM
SENATOR GARDNER suggested saying schools wmy not provide
mat eri al s or i nstruction about sexual ity and sexual |y

transmtted di seases at all.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if Senator Gardner is offering an
amendnent .

SENATOR GARDNER said no. She opined that there are tines when
that information should be available to students, such as from
school nurses. There is an appropriate tinme to discuss those
i ssues. She enphasized that the subtext of what has been
proposed is that those topics do not belong in schools and the
focus should be on reading, witing, and arithnetic.

SENATOR HUGGE NS spoke of schools needing witten perm ssion from
parents for school nurses to dispense aspirin. He submtted that
school staff should not act as nedical practitioners. This bil
rei nforces that.

SENATOR G ESSEL stated that there is a distinct difference
bet ween an educator in the school and an individual from outside
the school who works for a conpany or industry and pronotes
their business and industry. The bill attenpts to address that
in science class a teacher in presents unbiased facts and the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2015



school would inform parents of controversial issues and there
woul d be a consent procedure.

4:44: 01 PM
SENATOR GARDNER stated that Amendment 2 is about keeping Planned
Par ent hood out of schools. She argued, "If you want students to

not be provided information on materials about sexuality or
about sexually transmtted diseases in schools, then just say

that. If you want the material to conply to the unbiased and
approved, say that. If you want parents to know about it and
give witten permssion for it, the bill already does that, wth

or without this anendnent.
point to the anendnent.

She stated that she does not see any

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it was a good di scussion.

SENATOR HUGE NS suggested there should be a separation of
Pl anned Parent hood and school .

SENATOR GARDNER said that is a different discussion. |If the goal
is to prevent outsiders, or un-vetted naterial, or biased
material, many organizations could be listed without really
capturing what you want. Wat you want is that the nmaterial is
approved, not wunbiased, and provided by qualified, conpetent
peopl e, she said.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said it was a good discussion. He renoved his
obj ection to Anendnent 2.

SENATOR GARDNER obj ect ed

A roll call vote was taken. Senators Stevens, Huggins, G essel
and Dunleavy voted in favor of adopting Amendnent 2 to SB 89
and Senator Gardner voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnent 2 was
adopted by a 4 to 1 vote.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinmony.

4:47:28 PM

LINCOLN SAITO Chief Operating Oficer, North Slope Borough
School District, testified against SB 89. He said it encroaches
on the local school board's rights. People from the Regional
Corporation and non-profit corporations are welcone to cone into
the schools to speak to students and do denonstrations and
surveys. It is the local school district's right to control who
goes into schools. He also objected to requiring witten
perm ssion for surveys.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2015



4:49: 37 PM
At ease

4:49:56 PM

JON WATTS, representing hinself, testified in support of SB 89.
He said he is a nmenber of a group called Al askans Against the
Common Core. He spoke of privacy rights of parents and
opposition to the sharing of data by districts with outside
or gani zati ons.

4:52:27 PM

MONI CA WATTS, representing herself, testified in support of SB
89. She voiced concern about Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) restrictions on parents to nake decisions
concerning their children.

4:53: 36 PM

ALLI SON  CURRY, Staff, Pl anned  Parent hood, testified in
opposition to SB 89. She said, as a reproductive health care
provi der and a sexual health educator, Planned Parenthood sees
the devastating effects of sexual abuse and sexually transmtted

infections every day. Wile the bill appears to be about
parental rights, it does have dangerous consequences that put
the health and future of youth at risk, especially youth wth
absent or disengaged parents. Parental involvenment in their

children's education is vital and it should be encouraged.
However, Al aska has a child sexual abuse rate that is six tines
hi gher than the national average. Al aska also continues to |ead
the nation with the highest sexually transmtted infection (STI)
rates. Teens are at the highest rates for infection. In 2013, 63
percent of new cases of chlanydia were in 15 to 19 year-ol ds.

M5. CURRY said we should be working together to ensure that
Al aska youth has the resources and information they need to | ead
heal thy and productive lives. She opined that SB 89 does the
opposite of that. The bill would affect access not only to
sexual health education, but also extends to education on sexual
assault and awareness like in Erin's Law.

She said that Planned Parenthood does work closely with sone
schools, community organizations, and other social service
agencies in Alaska to provide a variety of educationa
opportunities that are tailored for each conmmunity. Subjects
t hat Pl anned Parenthood teaches are prevention, heal t hy
rel ati onships, consent, values and boundaries, as well as
pregnancy prevention. By targeting providers of a safe and | egal

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2015



service, who are also qualified providers of sexual health
education, this bill is cutting Al aska students off from the
education and information they need to make smart choi ces about
their health. Conprehensive sex education has consistently
proven to delay the onset of sexual activity and |ower rates of
STl's, as well as |ower teen pregnancy rates. She concluded that
we cannot afford to |limt access to the tools that kids need to
make healthy choices. She asked the commttee to consider the
health and safety of all Alaskan youth and pull SB 89 from
consi derati on.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about chlanmydia and teen pregnancy rates
in Al aska.

M5. CURRY said Alaska has twice the national average for
chlanydia rates, and higher rates than that in sone areas. She
said she would have to follow up with teen pregnancy rate
i nformati on.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how |ong Planned Parenthood has been in
Al aska.

M5. CURRY replied that it has been in Juneau since June 2009
but she did not know how long it has been in the state.

SENATOR GARDNER asked what the consequences of untreated,
undi agnosed chl anydi a are.

M5. CURRY said infertility is the direst inpact. Chronic pelvic
pain is another. She noted that chlanydia is asynptomatic, which
IS an issue.

4:58: 23 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL said despite Planned Parenthood' s efforts,
chlanydia is rising. She said she has seen the undercover videos
of Planned Parenthood, which docunent inappropriate advice. She
asked if it was an issue for Planned Parent hood Northwest.

MS. CURRY asked for an exanple of the evidence.

SENATOR G ESSEL said there were nmany exanples, such as underage
females being told not to disclose their age and abortion
advi ce.

M5. CURRY said Planned Parenthood has a strict requirenent for

reporting sexual abuse of wunderage girls and no one would
instruct a young girl to keep that to herself. She pointed out

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2015



that Planned Parenthood is not at liberty to pronote abortion.
The health care staff provides all pregnancy options and it is
up to the patient to make that decision. They abide by Al aska
state law regarding mnors and notify parents if a mnor were to
request abortion services.

5:01: 25 PM

TARYN LUSKDEET, representing herself, testified in support of SB
89. She said she is a part of the IDEA Action G oup and a nenber
of Al askans Agai nst the Conmon Core. She said she hel ped work on
a version of the bill, which would affirm parents' natural
rights. She did not think it was intended, but one version of
the bill puts paraneters on parents' rights. Parental rights
trunmp | ocal school boards' rights. She suggested changes to the
bill, such as Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED) shall recognize the natural rights of parents to direct
t he education of their children.

5:06: 02 PM

DR. BARBARA HANEY, representing herself, testified in support of
SB 89. She spoke strongly of parents' rights. She testified in
favor of the anendnents. She spoke of a case in Oregon related
to Planned Parenthood where a teacher was fired. She said the
Pl anned Parent hood curriculumties to the Conmon Core standards.

SENATOR GARDNER asked how the national sexuality standards are
tied to Cormon Core. She understood that Commobn Core standards
deal with | anguage arts and math only.

DR. HANEY said that enbedded in those standards is sonething
called "informational text." Planned Parenthood put together a
reading curriculumthat is tied to the informational text in the
school district and they tie into the Common Core. She said
other providers use informational text that are keyed to Al aska
standards through the Common Core standards.

SENATOR GARDNER suggested that those materials have nore to do
with curriculum but not standards.

DR. HANEY spoke of the Medicaid expansion curricul um

5:12:51 PM

JACK  WALSH, Superi nt endent , Craig City School District,
testified agai nst Anendnent 2. He was hoping the providers would
be defined so that the helpers who cone into the school would
not be banned. He said he does not wish to elimnate skilled
providers fromtal king to kids about inportant issues.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER asked M. Walsh and other school districts what
the inpact of all the provisions in the bill would be; the cost
of providing notice and tracking perm ssion slips, the validity
of test results, particularly when they are used to neasure
student progress and to evaluate teachers. She asked if there
were concerns about distorted data if parents pull their
children out of testing and about the overall inpact on student
education and cost.

MR. WALSH said the Craig district is unique in that it serves
300 in Craig and 300 students across the state in a
correspondence program If too nmany parents opt out on
assessnents or surveys, the district doesn't get a good picture
of the school's climte or connectedness as a small district. He
added that mailing costs would be significant.

5:17:11 PM

ED GRAY, representing hinself, testified in support of SB 89,
including the two anendnents. He shared his experience with the
abortion industry. He said they have students nmake bad
decisions. He asked the legislature to help protect his
chi | dren.

5:20: 52 PM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, testified in support of SB 89
and the two amendnents. He spoke in favor of parental contro
regarding education. He spoke against a variety of other
subj ects taught.

5:23:56 PM

RACHELLE SIEBER, representing herself, testified in support of
SB 89, including the anmendnents. She spoke in favor of parental
rights and against Planned Parenthood. She recommended the
under cover program called Live Action

5:25:35 PM

PO SE BOGGS, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She questioned the wording in Section 1 regarding test
assessnments. She question whether Section 1 would require
teachers to show parents the content of the tests, which isn't
al | owed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the intent is not to have anyone breech
protocols or test security.

MS. BOGGS asked where the intent is.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2015



M5. MARCUM said Legislative Legal chose the |anguage because it
is consistent with tests that are not neasured by teachers.

5:29: 07 PM
SACHA  PETTITT, Teacher, Mat - Su  Borough  School District,
testified in support of SB 89. She suggested a correction to the
| anguage to allow parents' natural rights. She pointed out that
parents' opting out indicates a need for a revision in the
curricul um

CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SB 89 in comm ttee.
5:31:41 PM
There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee, Chair

Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee at
5:31 p.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2015



